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Aspris Holdco Limited
Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022

The Directors present their strategic report of the period from 28 July 2021 to 31 August 2022,

Throughout the document, references to the “Company”* refer to Aspris Holdco Limited. References to the “Group”
refer to Aspris Holdco Limited and its subsidiaries. All amounts are presented in GBP £m, unless otherwise stated.

Principal activity
The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment holding company.

The: Group is a leading provider of specialist education and care services to young people in the UK. Educating and
caring for & wide spectrum of specialist education and mental healthcare needs, including autism, learning difficullics,
soclal, emotional and mental heaith conditions (SEMH). In addition, the Group provides specialist education and
mental health services to young people and adults respectively across the Middie East. The Group operates via two
primary divisions:

* The UK divisions provide education and residential care and assessment for children with specialist
emotional and behavioural difficulties or autistic spectrum disorders,

¢ The Middle East divisions provide education to young people in the UAE, and mental healthcare and
wellbeing services to adults and young people in UAE and KSA.

Business Review
Development of the business

The Company was incorporated on the 28 July 2021, and on the 31 August 2021 acquired 100% of the sharcholding
of Aspiis Children’s Services Limited (“ACSL”) (previously named Priory Education Services Limited) through the
10G% owned subsidiary Aspris Bidco Limited. These financial statements represent the results of the activities of the
Company since incorporation, the activities of the Aspris group since the date of acquisition and the subsequent
acquisitions and disposals described below. Prior to the acquisition of ACS). the Group did not have any trading or
operations and so the metrics quoted below as part of the ‘Performance of the Business’ seclion are for the twelve
months ending 3 1st August 2022.

On 28 January 2022 the wholly owned ACSL purchased 100% of the shareholding in SC Topeo Limited. From this
date the consolidated results and activities of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care”) are represented in these financial
statements.

On 31 March 2022 ACSL acquired 100% of the sharcholding in Hollyblue Healthcare {Arden) limited, latterly
renamed Aspris {(Arden) Limited. From this date the results and activities of this acquired entity are represented in
these financial statements. Please see note 17 to the financial statements for additional information on the above
business combinations completed during the period.

In addition to the Group's primary focus of providing high quality education and care to all those within its services,
the Group has alsc been focused on the successful completion of the following key developments:

« Separation from the Priory Group of companies. Whilst the operations of ACSL were largely autonemous
from those of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it by
the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of
the Group’s acquisition of ACSL. This transitional stage included the implementation of Aspris® own
standalone systems and support infrastructure, the process of which was completed by 1% January 2023, with
all services received under this transitional arrangement ceased fo be provided from that date.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Developnient of the business (continued)

Acquisition and integration of Sandeastle Care into the Aspris Group. Sandcastle Care provides residential
care places for over 100 young people, primarily in the North West of the UK. Thesc services are similar in
nature {o {hose already provided by the Group. The integration and incorporation of this business inlo the
Group has been a focus for members of the management team during the period.

Review of Group strategy and long-term plan. Following the successful separation fiom Priory Group, the
Group has underlaken a broad review of the key strategic direction and objectives of the business. The
comgpletion of this process provides the overarching framework within which the business is managed and
directed by the Board and senior management,

Continued expansion of our Middle East operations. Since establishing a presence in the UAE in 2017,
ACSL has steadily grovn the provision of services in the region to cater for the education and care nceds of
both young people and adults, including geographic expansion into KSA. Whilst the Middle East division
remains small relative to the primary UK operations (please refer to nole 4 to (he financial statements for
the split of revenue for the period ending 31 August 2022), the segion represents a central part of 1he
Group’s development strategy.

Performance of the Business

The key financial and non-financial performance indicators during the petiod were as follows:

Key I{PIs 2022
Turnover £1792m
Operating profit before Impairment losses and Exceptional costs £23.1m
Quality 83.2%
Capacity 1,910
Occupancy 1,660
Qccupancy % 86.9%
Annual Growth in Middle East patient appoiniments 5%
Notes:

1. Operating profit measure of £23.Lin is equal to the Group's Opemting loss £4.7m stated before Exceplional costs of £7.8m, Impairment
tosses of £19 7m and Other losses of £0.3m

2. Qualily, Capagity and Occupancy melrics refate to the UK business only, unless slated

3. Capaeity an Oceupatey quoted are averages for the pericd on a noa-proforma basis, with dual placements included as a single unit of
capacity and ocoupancy




Aspris lioldco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Eusiness Review {continued
Quality of our services

A primary indicator of the Group’s perfermance is the level of Quality of the services we provide to those in our
care.

Regulatory requirements differ across the Group, though the vast majority of our UK services are regulated by the
Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (‘Ofsted’}, and in Scotland and Wales by their
local equivalent. All schools and children®s homes must be licensed, and the refevant regulators award quality
ratings to each service. In Abu Dhabi, the schocl operated by the Group is regulated by the Abu Dhabi Department
of Education and Knowledge (*ADEK?) but is also subject to British School Overseas inspections. In addition, a
limited number of our services are also regulated the Care Quality Commission (CQC?) in Bnglaed, and, in
Scotland, Wales, Northern Ireland, and the Middle East, by the local equivalent.

Within the UK the Group achieved an average % of facilities rated as Good or above by lheir respective reguiators
of 83.2%. This is above the national benchmark level published by Ofsted but is below where the business’
objectives are in Lhis area. The provision of the best quality service is a key priority and the business is focused on
continuous improvement in this arca, supported by increased investment in our support functions that directly or
indirectly support the quality of our services.

Within the Middle East, the Group’s specialist education operations in Abu Dhabi (the first dedicated autism school
in Abu Dhabi for Emirati students in partnership with ADEK) underwent the first major inspection of a dedicated
aulism school in the region. The cutcome of this inspection was formally announced on 1* November 2022, with the
school achieving an Qutstanding rating across all areas. This further demonstrates the Group’s established delivery
of exceplional level specialist education services beyond the Gronp’s primary UK. market.

Results for the period

The Group delivered high quality services to meet the needs of a wide spectrum of young people, families, Local
Authorities and communities across the UK and Middle East. Wilh an average number of 1,660 young people using
our services in the UK during the period and 180 young people in the Middle East. In addition, the volume of ouipatient
appointments in our Middle East Wellbeing centres inereased by 51.1% vs the cquivalent prior period, driven partly
by the opening of twa new centres in Abu Dhabi and Saudi Arabia.

‘T'he results for the year ate set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 26 and the financiaf position of the
Group as at 31 August 2022 is set out in the consalidated Statement of Financial Position on page 28. Group revenue
for the year was £179.2m and Operating profit before exceptional costs, impairment loss and other tosses was £23.1m,
which represents an operating margin of 12.9% of revenue. Key factors of the operating profitabilily of the busincss
include the number of service users in our facilities, the availabilily and cost of staffing and the cost of associated non-
wage costs required to support the young people and our operations more generally.

The Group’s nct foss for the period was £27,1m, which was afer charging £19.7m impairment to goodwill relating to
the Sandcastle division, and after £7.8m of exceptional costs, these primarily refate to the costs incurred in relation to
the corporate transactions undertaken and ouilined above and in note 17. Further details of these exceptional charges
and impairment are given in notes 10 and 15 to the financial statements.

The Group’s financial position and underlying operating cash generation is pasitive, with net assets of £92.0m at the
close of the period and net cash flow from operating activities during the period of £34.2m,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Business Review (confinued)
Results for the period (continued)

The largest component ol our cust base is the wages and related oncosts of our staff, which represents 67% of aperating
cosls.

Staff are our primary resource and the Group prioritises the wellboing, tetention and recruiiment of our workforee.
This includes increased investment in staff wages, but also in a range of measures designed to increase staff wellbeing
and engagement.

Staff shartages have been a feature of the reporting period, with a smalt number of our available residential places

being offline due to these constraints. Despite these factors the financial performance of the Group was inline with the
original business plan supporting the acquisition of ACSL,

Future developments and styategy

Management consider the Group to be in a good position o expand the provision of its services in both the UK and
Middle East, Building on its existing high quality provision and strong reputation within each region to provide
essential services to a greater number of people in the communities that it serves.

The Group strategy prioritises the improvement of quality and uiilisation across all our existing facilities, in parallel
with continuing to expand the specialist education aspects of the business. With the planned opening of new education
capacily at existing and newly identified sites, being complemented by the targeled and selective acquisition of
existing specialist education providers,

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent with this strategy, the Group completed the acquisition of
a specialist education provider in the UK, BHIS Holdings Limited. The acquired business, and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100 primary and secondary school aged young
people in the East of Bngland. To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group
entered inlo an extension of its available external debt facilities with its exisling lenders, This new growth facility was
agreed and effective from 8 February 2023.

In addition, after the ¢lose of the reporting period the Group complefed a reorganisation of its UK operations, This
rcorganisation is aimed at improving and sirengthening the management structure to increase focus on delivering on
the Group’s objectives for all aspects of our services, including optimising staffing, and thereby improving utilisation
across our portfolio, by increasing transparency and management communication through all levels of the business.

In the Middle East, the Group is growing via the maturing of its recently opened Wellbeing Centres and via wider
opportunities to expand the education offering across region. In KSA the Group opened a Wellbeing Centre in
Riyadh through its joint venture with a local partner that was entered into in 2020. The Group continues to view
current and future local partnerships in the region as & key avenue for growth,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 Angust 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uneertainties

The Group can be impacted by a range of external factors. The principal factors are the availability and retention of
the appropriate number of trained and qualified staff, the macro-economic environment resulting in increased inflation
and Increased interest rates, changes in the UK government’s policy towards the funding of specialist education and
care, changes in the regulatory regime, competitive threats from other providers and the logs of key individuals. The
following are the most significant risks and uncertainties facing the Group.

Failure to comply with regulation and increased regulatory costs

All of the Group’s services are subiect to a high level of regulation by various regulatory bodies. Laws and
regulations are evolving within the sector (and may be introduced in the fulure) that could impose increased costs on
the Group’s operations. The Group is unable to predict the content of new legislation andfor regulations and thelr
cffect on its business.

inspections by regulators are carried out on both an announced and unannounced basis, dependent on the specific
regulatory provisions relating to different care or education services. The failure to comply with relevant regulations,
that thevefors Jeads to the determination of regulatory non-compliance, o1 the failure of the Group to cure any defeet
noted in an inspeetion report could tesult in the revocation ar impositien of conditions on the regisiration of any
service or 4 decrease in or cessation of, services provided by the Group at one or more of its facilities,

To mitipate these risks, the quality of care is monitored by an experienced team and through the establishment of
robust policies and procedures. The team ate independent of the operating divisions and vepont divectly (o the Board.
Homes are regularly audited by the team to ensure compliance with care standards and action plans are drawn up in
appropriate cases. Risks also mitigated by investing in the legal and compliance team, and In recruitment and
training. Where changes in legislation can be predicted, the Group models the impact the changes will have in
advance of the legislation being implemented.

Employees

The Group's performance depends on its operational staff at our schools and residential homes. The managers of our
fucilities, and their respective site teams, are essential for the provision of cur services. The loss of key individuals
and the inability to recruit people with the right experience and skills from the focal community could adversely
impact the Group’s results.

The relevant labour markets for certain of our services have become more challenging over the reporling period and
may continue to be challenging, or become more so, in the future, This may lead to an increase in the number of
staff vacancies across the Group and thersfore restrict the proportion of our capacity that can be fully eperational
and/or slow future growth prospects. Whilst the challenges have been less evident in the Education portion of the
business, as compared Lo the residential aspects of our services, it has nevertheless been a factor across the Group,

To mitigate these issues the Group has implemented a wide range of mcasures to enhance both our recruitment and
retention of staff, These initiatives are led by dedicated senior management from our Human Resources department,
along with our Learning angd Development function, and are targeted at improving overall employee welfare and to
ensure our staff offering, both financial and non-financial, is competitive within the markets in which we operate.

Specifically, regarding staff pay, the Directors take steps to ensure competitive salary levels across the Group and
have sought te increase across salaries across the Group during the period to aid refention and recruitment, with
specific consideration to the cost-of-living increases on ali staff caused by the macro-economic environment.

However, there is a risk that these selary levels are not sufficient to improve the Group’s staff metvics and therefore
further constraints on our services due to staff shortages may be possible.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Non-Wage supplies and cost inflation

In addition to workforce remuneration, the Group alse incurs costs on a range of supplies, including food, education
supplies, energy/utilities and rental expenses. The current macro-sconomic backdrop places increasing pressure on
ihe availability and cost{ of certain key supplies.

With energy, and other bulk product supply, challenges across Burope driving higher inflation levels than in
previous years there is inereased price pressure on the Group’s cost base. There is a rigk that these costs increase
further and, whilst they are a minority of the Group’s cost base, increases could still be material,

In addition, there is a risk that certain supplies will 1ake longer to source and therefore substitute producls may need
to be found, there is a risk this could cause disruption to our services and thal alternative supplies may be more
costly than thosc supplies which they repiace.

In additicn, certain supplies, such as foed, are sourced front a low number of major national suppliers and therefore
there may be a risk that disruption of service at one supplier, or price changes by those suppliers, could have an impact
on the Group.

To mitigate these arcas the Group has a dedicated procurement function focused an optimising ow sources, costs of
and security of supply. The Group engages on a regular basis with all our key suppliers to ensure effective management
of these risks. In eddition, the Group secks to agree pricing and security of supply on a forward basis where possibie
and appropriate, for example on our energy supplies, to inorease visibifity over cost and reduce supply slde risks.
Management of these risks include maintaining relationships with secondary source supplies to ensure options are
available to mitigate disruptions in supply from a particular provider.

Loss of revenue from contracts with UK local authorities

A substantial proportion of the Group’s UK revenue derives from publicly funded Local Authorities. The Group
expects to continue to rely on the ability and willingness of these bodies to pay for the Group’s services. Whilst
there is an obligation for Local Authorities to fund the provision of such services to young people there Is a risk that
either budget constraints or other financial pressures could cause such publicly funded bodies to allocate less money
to the types of service that the Group provides, or that political change or policy changes mean that fewer services
are contracted from independent sector providers.

In addition, there is a risk that these Local Authorities are not able to meet the increased costs of us viably providing
services at certain facilities, due Lo the above-mentioned cosi pressures.

Ta mitigate these risks the Group regularly assesses services provided te ensure they tepresent value for money and
where necessary repositions services to align with demand. Through the Group’s dedicated Bidding and
Commissioning leam, and otlrer members of our senior management team, the Group engages in regular
commuitication with our Local Authorities customers to ensure these is clear and open diaslogue with our key
customers.




Aspris Holdco Iimited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (contlinued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continuedy

1T security and Dats Protection

The Group’s IT infrastructure is an integral part of its operating capability. This infrastructure provides connectivity,
hardware and software applications to all of our facilities and central functions. Furthermore, the Group holds large
volumes of sensitive data, a portion of which resides within our IT environment.

There is a risk that the systems or applications fail or are subject to a sceurity breach that temporarily prevents their
use and therefore impacts owr servicss, In addition, such an cvent may compromise sensitive data held within the
Group relating to its customers, which could expose the Group to further liability due to such a Lreach,

‘The Group invests significantly in meeting these potential risks. With a dedicated 1T department reasonabie for the IT
eavironment and security, complimented by external expert advice and services procured to enhance key aspects of
Data Protection end Cyber security,

Impact from the visks related to the Covid-19 pandemic

The global cutbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 represeted a significant source of uncertginty within the wider
macroeconomic environment, including the sectors in which the Group operates. Disruption was experienced by most
sectors, and the Group’s services were not immune to these impacis.

Given the nature of our services the Group continued to operate its full service provision, with all schoots and homes
remaining open in the UK, and our Middle East Wellbeing centres moving successfully to an online appointment
based madel. The teams across the Group performed with outstanding professionalism to ensure we continued fo
dcliver essential education and care to all those that rely on our services.

Whiist there were notable staff absences due to self-isolalion, and the resulting operational chalienges, the long term
financial impact on the Group was not siguificant, and with the exception of the longer term constraints that have
impacted the general labour market referenced above, the Group is corently not impacted by the pandemic,

T'he Diirectors believe any further similar outhreak would be met with a similar successful response, but there is a risk
that a new Covid variant, or other pandemic, may have a greater Impact on the Group’s ability 1o provide its services,

To mitigate this the Group has clear and robust infection conirel policies, including contingency planning for staffing
in the event of a further outbreak.

1
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Principal Risks aind Uncertainties (continued)

Financink risk manarement

The Group is exposed to {inancial risks in the form of credit, interest and liguidity risks which arise in the normmal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to ave noted below, for fusther detail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

Credit visk

Financial instruments which potentially exposc the Group to credit risk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.
Cash is only deposited with major financial institutions that satisfy cerlain credit critcria.

Credit risk is not considered 1o be significant given thal over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entities,
and payment is taken in advance or at lime of treatment for privately funded healthcare services at our Wellbeing

centres,

Inferest rate visl
The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving exiernal eredit facilities, All the external debt of the

Group contains a variable element which is linked 1o the Sterling Overnight Index Average, published by the Bank of
England, Senior loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revelving facilities are repayable on 31 August 2026.

The Group regulariy reviews the oplions available to it for the hedging of interest rate risk, but currently does not have
a hedged component to the interest burden on its external debt. In light of prevalling market conditions, and the high
cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe the Group has sufficient capacity to address the risk of interest rate
rises.

Liquidity visk

The Group prepares annuat and monthly cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated projects,
The Group has suffictent available facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments. The Group has
access o a Revolving Credit Facility that is available to support the Group’s operational liquidity requirements at the
signing of the finzncial statements the majorily of this Revolving Credit Facility was undrawn,
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement

The following Section 172 statement, which is required by the Companies Act 2006, describes how the Directors
have had regard to the matters set out in 5172 (1a to 1[) including key decisions and matters that are of strategic
importance to the Group. The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under §172 of the Companices Act 2006,
act in & way they consider, in good faith would be most fikely 10 promcte the suceess of the Group for the benefit of
its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the Jong term.

We aim to pursue an open and transparent diakogue with our key stakcholders in erder to develop a clear
understanding of their needs, assess their perspectives and monitor their impact on our strategic objectives. As part
of the Board’s decision-making process, the Directors consider the potential impact of decisions on relevant
stakeholders whilst also baving regard to a number of broader {actors, including the impact of the Group’s
aperations on the community and environment, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of
decisions in the long term.

Key stakeholders

Our key stakeholders are our serviee users (and their families), our workforce, owr regulators and our investors and
lenders. Our commissioners, suppliers, and the communities we operate yithin are also Important stakeholder groups.
All key Board decisions take into account the impact on the relevant stakeholder proups, as follows:

Service users and their families

The Group provides specialist education, care and mental health services to a wide range of young people in the UK,
and to young people and adults in the Middle East. Those to whom services are provided, and their families, are
fundamental to every aspect of the Group’s operations and objectives. The Directors monitor the quality of service
provision to ensure the highest levels of care ate provided by a highly skiiled and well equipped workforce. In addition,
the Directors monitor the condition and appiopriateness of the environment across the Group’s facilities lo ensure the
physical environment In which services arc provided are appropriately configured and maintained to the high standards
required for leading education and care provision. Feedback is received directly through our operational teams, who
interact directly with service users and their families, and through multiple channcls of communication to senior
management to ensure issues can be raised and escalated outside of any specific care team or facility, The directors
wre committed (o open communication and {ranspurency regarding all aspects of ouy service delivery, and ensuring
the Group’s operations deliver service provision to meet the specific needs of each Individual service user.

Workforce

Quy wovkforee is key to providing safe and effective care 1o those whom we support. The Group employs a wide array
of speefalist education and care professionals and engagement with these employees is paramount. The Directors
monilor the results of staff surveys, both regutar and ad hoc, together with the Group’s system of employee forums
which oceur at local, vegional and national level, meaning the Board is able to discuss human resourcing matters with
the interests of its workforce at heart. An example of actions taken in response la the feedback generated through these
channels is the articulation of tailored caveer pathways available to all Group employees. Annual satary reviews are
undertaken with reference to the importance of collcague retention, changes in the National Living Wape, and
comimercial factors, The Directors are committed to communicating the resulis of any wvage reviews in a transparent
manger, Further information in respect of employees is sot out on the Directors® report.

Investors

Our shareholders register consists of'a majority shareholders, Standbyco 35 B.V. who are wholly owned by Waterfand
Private Equity Investments B.V., and a number of minority shareholders whict includes our largest single landlord
{Medical Properiies Trust) and various members of the Group®s managerment team. The Board engages regularty with
its major shareholders in order to, inter alia, develop long-term and short-term business strategy, decide upon resource
allocation and consider key business risks. This includes regular reporting to both Waterland Private Equity and
Medical Properties Trust to cnsure clear alignment and transparency over Group performance and direction.

12
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Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (continued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Repulators

We are subject to a high degree of regulation, particularly in relation Lo the registration and ongeing inspection of our
services. 'I'he “business review” section above outline the key regulatery bodies, Resulls of inspections and more
general reports made by the regulators are discussed by the Board where appropriate, and ongoing dialogue is
maintained in order 1o respond with agility to emerging areas of focus. Some of our regulators also have responsibility
for monitoring the ongoing financial viability of our business — senior management meet with the regulators
periodically to engage in this process. Staff bonuses schemes at all levels of the vrganisation are at least partly linked
to the outcomes of internal and external qualily metrics.

Customers

The majority of our revenue is generated from the provision of services to Local Authorities and other public bodies,
with a minority of revonues generated from private funding. In all cases is important that we eveive our service
provision to satisfy local demand (the needs of which can change over time), meet changing education and care criteria
and provide such services at the right time and place at an appropriate cost. Communication with custemers is ongoing
both tocally and nationally, and the Board will consider the requirements of customers when allocating resources for
new or emended service offerings, and agreeing a general approach to funding.

Suppiiers

We alm to treat aur suppliers faitly and work in partnership with them as they provide essential goods and services to
the Group. It is our policy to adhere to agreed credit terms, We maijutain strong supplier relationships acrass our supply
chains, led by the Group’s dedicated procurement function. Our key suppliers also includes our contracted workforee,
agency workers and related staffing agencies in the teaching and care professions, who play an essential role in
delivering quality services. For all supplies we engage in transparent and robust tendering and onboarding processes
to deliver fair and sustainable outcomes for suppliers and for the Group.

Communities

The Group operates nationally and many of our facilities are embedded within the wider community. 1t is therefore
important that the impact of our operations on the communities we operate in are laken into consideration, We are
also cognisant of the need to consider the overall environment when contracting with suppliers, or considering any
significant development projects, for example.

Principal decisions

The Group defines principal decisions as those that are matcrial, or of strategic importance to the Group, and also
those that have a significant impact on any of our key stakeholder groups. By way of example, a selection of principal
decisions taken by the Board during the year is set out below, highlighting the primary stakeholder groups affected
and some of the considerations taken into account in reaching these principal decisions.

Approval of the 2022/23 budget

The Board approved, prior to the start of the new financial and academic year, the finaf budget for the tvelve months
ending 3 1st August 2023. The budget includes forecasts for each existing facility as well as central functions in order
to arrive at an apgregated business plan. The key stakeholder groups affected are our investors and our workforce,
Some of the key consideralions taken into aecouni included the balance of delivering ever greater quality of services,
improved staff retention and growth of our services to service a greater number of people.

13




Aspris Holdco Limited

Strategic Report for the period to 31 August 2022 (coniinued)

Section 172(1) statement (continued)

Facility vefurbishments, expansions and service changes

As part of the 2022/23 budget, and locking ahead into the medium term, the Board approved a number of significant
capital expenditurc projects in order to refurbish and/or expand existing facilitics, retool locations lo better reflest
demand for services and consider selective additional property acquisitions to expand cerlain service lines, The key
stakeholder groups affected are our investors, our commissioners and cutrent and future service users. Some of the
key considerations taken into account included the fikefy return on investment of such projects, the ability of a project
to meet the requirements of conumissioners in providing a particutar scrvice, and our ability to safely and effectively
operate the service.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters

The Group has an established and Robust Anti-Bribery and Corruption processes and controls in place. These are
supported by an internal audit function that has the mandale to perform announced and unannounced inspections and
investigation into any transactions occurring at a local, regional or group fevel.

Approved by the Board and signed on ils behalf by:

Rl el ‘Trevar M Torringto
Director DNirector

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023



Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the period ended 31 August 2022

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements for the period from 28 July 2021 to 31
August 2022,

Incorporation
The Comparny was incorporated in England and Wales and commenced trading on 28 July 2021,

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepaved in accordance with International financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and (he IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRS IC”) interprefations as adopted by the UK,

This report should be read in conjunction with the strategic report from page 4. The Group has chosen in accordance
with Section 414C (2] of the Companies Aci 2006 fo set out in the strategic report the following which the Directors
belicve to be of sirategic importance:

*  Business revicw,

»  Future development and slrategy;

s Principal risk and uncerlainties; and

s  Financial risk management,
Directors of the Group

The Dircctors, who held office during the period, were as follows;
Oliver J Bevan (appointed 28 July 2021}

Ryan Hallworth (appointed 28 July 2021)

Ryan D Jervis (Appeinted 31 August 2021)

Trevor M Torrington (Appointed 31 August 2021)

Dividends

The Board has not recommended a dividend for the reporting period and has ne current plan to do so.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Statement of DHyvectors® Responsibilitics

The Divectors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the {inancial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial slatements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have elecled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Financial
Reponting Standards (IFRSs). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they pive a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period, In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK. adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) have been
followed, subject to any malerial departures disclosed and explained in the financial slatements; and

s prepare the financial statemenis on the going concern basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequale accounting records that ave sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and the company and enable them lo ensure that (he financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the asscts of the Group and the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Corporate goveynance
The Group has robust Governance and oversight of all aspects of the busincss:

* The Board meet at teast six times per annum and are responsible for the overall management and direction
of all aspects of the Group.

¢ The Executive Commillee, which is Chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and includes senior management
from across all aspects of the business, meets monthly and ave the primary executive team for the execution
and governance of the day 1o day reaning of the Group.

¢ Quality and Compliance committee, which is Chaired by the Divector of Govermnance and includes senior
operational and function leads directly related to education and care quality, meets monthly and is the senior
oversight of operational quality and risk.

* Performance and Commercial Review committee, which is Chaired jointly by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer, meets monthiy and is the senior ovetsight of the financial and commercial
performance of the busingss.

» Independent inspections, in line with the relevant lepislation {regulelion 44 of The Children’s Homes
(England) Regulations 2015)) the Group has a rolling programme of independent inspections that repott into
the Executive committee and above quality committee. These provide independent oversight over the quality
delivery of appropriate and compliant education and care services,




Aspris Holdeo Limited

Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Going cancern

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group®s projecied trading and associaled liquidity requirements based on a range
of scenarivs to ensure it has sufficicnt cash to meet ils operational and financial needs. These forecasts are underpinned
by detailed and embedded forecasting processes and procedures to provide granular visibility over both the near term
and Jong-term liguidily requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors deeision making on all key financial
matters. The Direclors consider both short term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-
maonth daily liguidity forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3
year long range plans for the Group. Each of these prajects the liquidity and cavenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this loss in the current period is
driven by the non-cash impairment of goodwill (sce note 15) of £19.7m and cxeeplional costs of £7.8m, excludiog
these ilems the Group made a loss of £0.Im and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an
operating profit during the going concern period. The Group generates sufficient cash lo cover its Tiabifities and surplus
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods. At 31 August 2022
the Group had debt of £165.0m due 10 its external lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans were due
to our shareholders,

These considerations include the availability of committed, but undrawn, debt facilities that are available to the Group
to support general corporale and working capital purposcs. As af 31 August 2022 these available but undrawn
facilities were £19,7m

The Directors assessment of going concern considers three primary areas:
1. ey fundamentzl business factors

The Group’s primary business, and majority of the Group*s revenues and cashflows, is generated via the provision
of services with specific characteristics that are key in considering downside risk:

Provision of essential services

The group provides essential educstion and care services to meel the needs of a wide spectrum of young people in
our society. The demand for these services has increased over the last decade and continues to do so across the
country. Certain service arens are slated as a Governmental priority, hence funding is ringfenced for many of the
areas the Group provides.

Diversified payor base with low credit risk across the significant majorify of the Group

The majority of the Group’s revenues and cashflows are gencrated from customers that are publicly funded. This
Payor includes over 180 Local Authority customers across England, Wales and Scotland. In the majority of case
each LA services and [ees are provided on bespoke commercial terms and paid for seperately by each customer,
significantiy reducing the customer concentration risk,

Established position as a trusted provider

The Group is one of the leading providers of such services in the UK. The Group holds long standing relationships,
oflen held at hoth aperational and management levels, with its individual customers. The Group has consistently
defivered above national benchmarks for quality serviee provision and continues fo place, as a priority, the
provision of the highest quality care to meet the needs of everyone it serves,

Strength, depth and experiesice of the Group's management team and iifrastructure

Over many years the Group has developed, and invested in, the sirength and experience of its workforce and
management team. These factors enable the nationwide provision of our services to be managed within a rigorous
risk management frameivork, to respond to risks as they arise.
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Directars® Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Gaing concern (continued)

Versatility of skills ta meet demand changes

The skills embedded in ouy workforce, and the nature of many of our facilities, are such that we can be
responsive to changes in the needs and demands of the people we care for, their funders and regulators. This
agility reduces the time taken to adapt the Group to best address its core markets,

Cash flow visibility

The majority of young people in the UK that we care for remain within our services for more than a year, and the
payment value and timing for the related services are largely defined at the outset of each placement. These
factors provide a base for good visibility over core trading performance and the working capital requirements of
the business, Thereby ieading to good levels of cash flow visibility over the near to medium term.

. Assessment of the principal risks and impact of a severe but plausible downside scenario

In assessing the potentinl impasct of a vange of risk factors on the business the Directors have considered the
likely impact on the Group of a range of risks specific to the relevant business sector, as well as the compound
impact of risk factors int the broader imacro environment that have evolved since the balance sheet date.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different advetse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material
adverse impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity during the going concern petiod. Further details can be
found in note 3 of the financial statements

Consideration of the contrallable action that the Directors can tale to mitigate a severe but plausible
downside seenarlo

In response to downside risks the Group has a range of actions, within its control, that it coutd deploy lo mitigale
the impaet, These inciude but ave not limited ta:

s  Reduction in non-essential capital expenditure, including the capital expenditure on future growth projects

. Adapting or pausing of services where no demand exists to reduce or halt losses at a patticular facility and
better deplioy resources

s Reduction in certain areas of discretionary spend that would not have any short to medium term adverse
impact on the Group

In agpregate the inclusion of mitigation actions materially increases the level of liquidity and covenant headroom
further, versus the unmitigated scenario

Having considered all of the above factors the Directors have concluded there is no material uncertainty on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern for the period from the date of the approval of these financial
statements to 31 August 2024,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engagement witly employees

The Directors recognise that the continued position of the Group in the specialist education, care and behavioural care
industry depends on the quality and motivation of its employees. Well trained, engaged and quality employees are
erucial for the Group to ensure that service users receive the best quality care. The key quality performance indicators
the Group uses 1o measurc eagagement and training are: the employee opinion survey, employee sickness levels and
compliance with the Group e-learning programnie. The Group has low levels of sickness and high levels of compliance
with training programmies, Whilst monitoring these performance indicators, the Group continues to review its
remuncration system to ensure it is fair, transparent, flexible and provides individual recognition. Employees have a
personal development plan that is monitored, assessed and medificd during the annual appraisal process.

The Group recugnises that good and effective employee communications are partleularly important to retaining and
motivating employees, and throughout the business it s the Dircctors® policy to promote the vndersianding by afi
employees of the Group’s business aims, purpose, performance and individual opportunities for personat and career
development, This is achieved through internal publications, presentations on performance and a variety of other
epproaches appropriate for a particular location. Employees are consulted on issues through our Active Colleague
Engagement (FACE’) forums. In all these areas, the Group continues to further invest in resource and IT sclutions in
arder to deliver z positive experience for all our colleagues.

The Direclors believe that it is important to recruil and retain capable and caring staff regardless of their gender,
marital status, race or religion. It is the Group’s policy to give full and fair consideration to applications for
employment from people who arc disabled, 1o confinue wherever possible the empleyment of and to arrange
appropriate training for, employees who become disabled and to provide equal opportunities for the career
development, training and promotion of disabled employces.

Chavitable Donations

Dwring the period the Group made charitable donalion of £50,000. Individual donations were as {ollows:

Charity £

UNICEF - Ukraine appeal 50,000
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamilined energy and carbon reporting

In April 2019, the Department for Business, Energy and Indusirial Strategy introduced a new reporting regulation
entitled the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting Framework (“S8ECR™), replacing various other reporting
requirements. Organisations subjcct to SECR are required ta include information relating to thelr energy usage and

carbon emissions,

The energy used and enissions the perlod ended 31 August 2022 are es foltows:

Emission type Total Caleulated
Volume Lmissions

(lcWh) (Tonnes of

CO%)

Scope 1 {direct) 13,814,587 2,954.9
Scope 2 (indirect) 5,020,739 9709
Scope 3 (indirect) 26,798 26.8
Total 18,862,124 39806

Scope | Bmissions (divect) are Emissions from activities owned or controlled by the Group, that release emissicns
into the atmosphere, scope 1 emissions for Aspris Group include amongst othel, combustion in owned boilers and

vehicles.

Scope | Emissions (direct) for the period ave as follows:

Eunergy type Definition Total Caleulafed

Volume Kanissions

(IlKWh) (Tonnes of

C0%)

Gas Emissions firom combustion of gas 6,407,987 1,169.7

Other Fuels Emissions from cerbustion of fuels for stationary 7,153,714 1,5323
machinery and engines

Transport Emissions from combustion of fuels for ivansport 232,886 252.9

puiposes
Tatal 13,814,587 2,954.9

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) are emissions released into the atmosphere sssociated with the Groups consumption of
purchased electricity, heat, and cooling. These are indirect emissions thal are a consequence of the Group’s

activities, but which occur at sources that the Group does not own or control.
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting {continued)

Scope 2 Emissions (indirect) for the period ate as follows:

Energy type Definition Total Calculated
Yohmne Emissions

(lkwhy (Tonmnes of

CO%)

Electricity Emissions fram purchased electricity 5,020,739 970.9
Total 5,020,739 970.9

Scope 3 Ermissions (indircet) arc cmissions thai are a consequence of the actions of the Group, which occur at source
which are not classified as scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions are business travel by means not

owned or controlied by the Group.

Scope 3 Emissions (indirect) for the period are as follows:

Energy type Definition Total Calculated
Volume Emissions
{kWh} {Tonnes of
CO%)
Employee-owned cars  Emissions from business travel in rental cars or 26,798 26.8
employee-owned vehicles where the company is
responsible for purchasing fuel {mandatory)
Totat 26,798_ 26.8
Intensity Ratlo
The Group monitors an Intensity ratio in the form of a comparison of emissians to turnover:
Intensity measure Turnover Intensity
£m Ratio?
Tonnes CO% per total £m turnover 179.2 22.06
Total 179.2 22,06
"1CO%fTurraver £m

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Greup has taken guidance from the UK Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines (March 20189), the
GHG Reporting Protoco! - Corporate Standard, and from the UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporiing document for calculating carbon emissions. Energy usage information (gas and electricity) has
been obtained directly fron: our energy suppliers and hatf-hourly (HH) data, where applicable, for the [1H supplies.
For supplies where there were not complete periods encrgy usage available, flat profile estimation techniques were
used to complete the periods consumption. Transpert mileage data was cbtained from expense claims submitted by
the Group®s cars and prey fleet. CO% emissions were caloulated using the appropriate emission factors 2022 from

the UK Government GHG conversion information,
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Directors’ Report for the Period ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Streamlined energy and carbon veporfing (confinued

Energy efficient action

In the past year the Group has undertaken varicus energy cificiency works across the estate, including the upgrading
of AC systems, boilers and insulation. The Group have, at a number of sites, commenced conversion of Oil heating
systems to more efficient LPG solulions. These focussed works are ongoing alongside general refurbishments
undertaken including LED lighting and general efficiencies.

The Group will continue our efforts threngh participation in Phasc 3 of ESOS (Energy Saving Oppottunities Scheme)
to assist in the targeting and reduction of its carbon footprint through continued struciured investment in encrgy
efficiency programmes.

Ethical trading

The Group endeavours o purchase goods and services with the least environmental impact. Our efforts for waste
diversion from landfill, recycling, coliection, and segregation have meant that the Group have diverted 99% of trade
waste away from landfill. Aspris also recycled 35% of all trade waste generated, and we remain committed to
increasing this percentage of recycling year on year, with a target of 50% by the end of 2023.

‘We continue to be supported in cur efforts through the collection of recyclable malerials, the collection and
conversion of our waste cooking oil to diesel, and other initiatives.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a diveclor in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information. The Directors
confirm thal there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringtbn
Director

The Forge,

43 Church Street West,
Woking.

GU21 6HT

21 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO TIHE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
Opinion on the financial statements
In our opinion:

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group'’s and of the Parent Company’s
affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of the Group’s loss for the period then ended;

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in aceordance with UK adopted international
accounting siandards;

»  the Pareni Company finencial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2000,

We have audited the financiaf statements of Aspris Holdco Limited (“the Parent Company™) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group™) for the period ended 31 August 2022 which comprise the Consolidaled Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition, Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Consofidated Statement of Cash
Flows, Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statenients, including a summary of significant accounting
palicies. The financial reporting framework thal has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, and as regards the Parent Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Busis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ([SAs (UK)) and applicable law,
Qur responsibilities uader those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidenco we have oblained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethicaf requirements that are relevant

to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Canclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of ihe financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or coliectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or Parent Company's ability fo
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to golng concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORY TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The ather information eomprises the information inchuded in
the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statemnents does not cover the other infosmation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in owr report, we
do not express any form of assuranes conclusion thereon.

Gur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infermation is niaterially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the andit or atherwise appears
to be materially misstated. 1f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent maierial misstatements, we are
required to determine whether this gives rise to a materjal misstatement in the financial statements themselves, I,
based on the work we have perforined, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
arc required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in (he conrse of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* the Strategic report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance wilh applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Sirategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respeet of the following matters in retation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion:

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial statemnents are net in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

*  cerfain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration speecified by law are not made; or

s wehave not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit.
Responsibilities of Divectors
As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the Directors are vesponsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal

control as the Divectors determing is necessary to enable the preparalion of {inancial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

In preparing the financial statemenis, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
coneern basis af accounting unless the Directors either infend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the andif of the finanein} statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staicments as a whole are frec from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an audilor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with
1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement wheun it cxisis. Misstatements can acise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these financial statements.

Exient to whic/ the audit was capable of detecting irvegularities, including frand

Iiregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, lo delect maiterial misstalements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent o which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including [raud is detailed below:

We have identified and assessed the potential risks refated fo irregulavities, inciuding fraud, by considering the
following:

o the nature of the industry, including the design of the Group’s remuneration policies;

o enguiries of management regarding; compliance with laws and regulalions; the deteclion and
respanse to the risk of fraud and any knowledge of actual, suspecled or alleged fraud; and the
controls in place to mitigaie risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.

o oblaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework in which the Group operates,
including employment law, and Health and Safety requirements.

o petrforming pracedures to verify the existence of revenues, and consider the risks around the
fraudulent recognition of amounts.

We have responded to risks identified by performing procedures including the following:
o engquiry of management concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

o reviewing the financial statement disclosures and lesting 1o supporting documentation lo assess
compliance with relevant laws and regulations;

o performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships which may
indicate risks of misstatement due to fraud; and

o reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance identify any instances of non-
compliance with faws and regulations.

We have also considered the risk of fraud through management override of controls by:

o sampie testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the
judgements made in making accounting cstimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating
the busincss rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal cowrse
of business;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ASPRIS HOLDCO LIMITED
(CONTINRUED)

o discussing among the engagement team how and wheie fraud might oceur in the financial statements
and any potential indicators of fraud, As part of this discussion, we considered potential for fraud
in revenue recaognition, specifically in refation to revenue existence, as well as the potential far
management override of contrels specifically in relation to the posting of journal adjustments and
the inappropriate use of estimates.

o in addressing the risk for fraud in revenue recognition, testing the appropriateness of the revenue
recognition policies and the application of these policies and performing specific procedurcs over
the existence and cut-off of revenue; and

o discussing with management and those charged with governance whether they are aware of any
frauds, or non-compliance with laws and regulations, during the period.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of materal misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to finud is higher than the risk of not detecting
one resulting from crror, as fiaud may involve deliberate concealment by, for cxample, forgery, misrepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherenl limitations [n the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the cvents and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
iikely we are to become aware of it,

A Ruther description of our respensibilities is available on the Firancial Reporling Council’s website at:
httpsy/Awwiv.fic.org.uk/anditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our yeport

This report is made solely ta the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
menbers those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibilify to anyone other than the Pavent Company and the
Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this vepoit, or for the opinions we have formed.

Decusigned by:

Paul ﬁhﬁwjouu

E10CCGHCF40AZ4CC. |

Pau! Etherington BSc FCA CF (Senior Statutory Auditor)
Far and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditer
Reading, UK

22 March 2023

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated Income statement for the period ended 31 August 2022

Note 2022

£m

Revenue 4 1792

Operating costs (156.1)

Exceptional {tems 10 (7.8)

Impaivment loss 15 (19.7}

Other losses 8 (0.3)
Operating loss @ !4.7? i

Nel finance costs 9 @20
Loss before iaxation et

Income tax il 03
Loss attribuiable to the owners of the Group B -W
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The notes on pages 34 o 73 form an integral part of these financial slatements,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period to

31 August 2022
2022
£m
Loss for the period (27
Total comprehensive income for the period _ 271
28

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial stalements.



Aspris Holdco [imited
Registration Number: 13534635

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Nate 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 158.1
Right of use assels 13 136.4
Intangible assets 14 o 143.4
457,9
Current asscis
Trade and other receivables 18 24.5
Cash and cash equivalent 19 R L
42,6
Total assets 500.5
Current liabilitles
Lease liabilities 13 {5.1)
Trade and other payables 24 (21.5)
Income tax liability 0.9
Deferred income 20 . (28.8)
(56.3)
Net current liabilities (13.7)
Non-current liabilitics
Lease liabilities 13 (155.4)
Loans and borrowings 22 {159.6)
Provisions 23 (1.0
Deferred tax liabilities 26 (36.2)
{352.2)
Net assets 92.0
Share capital 21 84.6
Share premium 34.3
Accumulated losses 27.1)
Total equity 92.0

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Trevor M Torringfo
Director

21 March 2023
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of {hese financial statements.




Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended

August 2022

Share capital Share Retained  Total eguity
Preminm Earnings
Loss for the perlod } o 27.1D 1N
Total camprehensive income 27.1) 27.1)
New share capital subscribed i 84.6 345 - 119.1
_At 31 Augrust 2022 ] 84.6 34.5 @70 92.0
k1]

The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Aspris Holdeo Limited
Registration Number: 13534635

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 August 2022

Note 2022
£m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investiments in subsidiarfes 6 119.1
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 0.2
Cash and cash equivalent 19 - C.7
T

Total assets 120.0
Current liabilities
Trade and other payablcs 24 0.9)
Net current assefs/(liabilities) -
Net assets 119.1
Shave capital 21 84.6
Share premium i 34.5
Total equity o 119.1

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from
presenting its own profit and loss account. The Company's loss for the year was £15,000.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

/4“"‘ /
i Trevor M Torringto

Director Director

21 March 2023
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The notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements,




Aspris Holdco Limited

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the Period ended August 2022

Share eapital Share Retained Tofal equity
Preminm Farnings
Loss for the period - -
Total corprehensive income - -
New share capital subseribed N 84.6 34.5 - 119.1
_At31 Augusi 2022 i} 846 34.5 - 119.1
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Period ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the period

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisalion

Depreciation on right of use assets

[mpairment of goodivill

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment
Finance income

Finance costs

Share of loss of equity accounted invesieos
Income tax

Working capital adjustments
Increase in Irade and other receivables
Inerease in trade and other payables
Increase in provisions

Decrease in deferred income

Cash generated from eperations
Income taxes paid
Net cash flow from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property piant and equipment
Advances of loaus to joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries - net of cash acquired

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shaves

Proceeds from external borrowing draw downs
Repayment of external borrowing

Repayment of [oans advanced from former parent
Principal paid on lease liabilities

Interest paid on lease liabilities

Net inerease in, and closing cash and eash equivalents

Note

—_
NI MDD DD Ln O O

16
17

17

13

18

2022
£m

(27.1)

13.7
8.5
197
8.3
(©.1)
22.8
0.5
{0.3)

38.0

Tl notes on pages 34 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022

1. General information

The company is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated in England and Wales and domiciled in
United Kingdoin, regisiration number 13534635, Aspris Holdco Limited Group includes the Aspris Children’s
Services Abu Dhabi Branch.

These financial statentents were authorised for issue by the Board on 17 March 2023
2. Accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards
and its interpretations adopted by the UK ("UK adopted IFRSs"),

Summary of significant accounting policies and key estimates

The principal accounting polictes applied in the preparation of these financial statemcents are sef out below, These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Busis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepaved in aecordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the companies act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS,
‘The Company has clected to prepare its parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK generally
accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP), including FRS 101

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost accounting rules.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under scotion 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and
elected not to present its own Staternent of Comprchensive Income in these financial statements.

Going concern

The Bomd reviews foretasts of the Group’s liquidity vequirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure it has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs. These forecasts arc underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processcs and procedures fo provide granular visibility over both the near ierm and long-term liquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors’ decision making on all key financial matters, The Directors
consider both shott term and long-term forecasts for the business, ranging from rolling three-month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and petiodic intra year reforecasting processes, and longer term 3 year long rauge plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

The Group made a loss before tax of £27.4m for the period ended 31 August 2022, this toss in the current period
reflects the non-cash impaitment of goodwill (see note 15) 0f £19.7m and exceptional of £7.8m, excluding these
items the group made g loss of £0.1m and an operating profit of £23.1m. The Group is forecast to make an operating
profit during the going coneern period. The Group penerates sufficient cash to cover its liabilities and surpius
balances are held as cash reserves to invest in the Group and support the business in future periods, At 31 August
2022 the Group had debt of £165.0m due 1o its exteinal lenders and finance lease liabilities of £160.5m. No loans
were duc to our shareholders.

As part of their considerations the Directors teview a range of different scenarios, including a severe but piausible
downside scenario to assess the impagt on both the liquidity and covenant headroom of the Group, see note 3.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The Group finansial stalements consnlidate the financial stafements of the Company and iis subsidiary undertakings
drawn up to 31 August 2022,

A subsidiary is an entity conirolled by the Company. Control is achieved where the Company has the power (o
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as 1o obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the income statement from the
cffective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjusiments are
mede to the financial statements of subsidiaries-to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the
Group,

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for business combinations that result in the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of & business combination is measured as the fair value of (he ayscts given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly atiributable
to the business combination, Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and conlingent Liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured inilially at their fair values at the acquisition date. Any excess of the cost of the
business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised is recorded as goodwill,

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related patties, are eliminated in fufl.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indieate an impairment that requires recognition in the consclidated
financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy
The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 28 July 2021:
*  Amendmenis {o JFRS 17 Insurance Coniracts

None of the standards, interprelations and amendments effective for the first time from 28 July 2021 have had a
material effect on the financial statements.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments are not yet effeci:

Amendiment {0 1AS 1 “Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-current
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definilion of a business”
1AS 16: PPE: Proceeds before intended use
IAS 37: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract
Annual improvement cycle to IFRS (2018-2020 Cycle}
o IFRS 1. Subsidiary as a first time adopler
o IFRS9: fees in the *10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilitics
o IFRS i6: Lease incenlives amended example
1AS B: Definition of accounting estimates
1AS 1: Disclosure Initiative — accounting paolicies
Amendments to TAS 12 “Deferred tax relating to assets and liabililies arising from a single transaction®

None of the standards, interpretations and amendments which are effective for periods beginning after 28 July 2021
and which have not been adopied early, are expected to have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Revenue Recognition
Recognition

Revenue is recagniscd based upon the nuber of people per day to which we have provided a service. These volume
metrics ave recorded and combined with the applicable fee rate per person per service, to derive the total revenue to
be recognised. There is limited judgemental input this process

Revenue is recognised as performance obiigations are satisfied as control of services is transferred {o the customer.
The Group has determined that most of its performance obligations are satisfied over time as the client
simultaneously received and consumes the benefits provided by the Growp as the education or care services are
rendered. In the circumstances, revenue s recognised al the amount which the Group has the right to invoice, where
that amount covresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s parformance completed to date.

The principles in TFRS are applied to revenue recognition criteria using the following 5 step model:

1. Identify the contracts with the customer

2. ldentify the perfermance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the (ransaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Fee arvangements

Below are dotails of fee arrangements and how these are measured and recognised, for revenue from the provision of
services:

Aspris delivers special education and care services (o its service users in line with contractual agreetnents, which
clearly state the nature of the services to be provided over what time period. The main performanece obligations in
contracts consist of delivery of services lo serviee users. For all contracts the stage of completion and delivery of
performance obligations are measured at the balance sheet date by reference to services delivered to service users at
that date.

Transaction price

To calculate the transaction price of contracts rates are applied daily or by specific service provided to service users
as detailed in contractual agreements,

Paynrent terms

Payment terms range from payment in advance of services delivered to within & range of specified days of receipt of
service or invoice, dependant on the specific citcurnstances and needs of the service users.

Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change
attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income,

The current income tax charge is caleulated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the veporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Property, planf and equipment

Property, plant and eguipment is staled in the slatenment of financial position at cost, kess any subseguent
accunutlated depreciation and subsequent accumulated jmpairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes directly atiributable incremental costs incurred in their
acquisition and installation.

Depreciadion

Depreciation is charged so as (o write off the cost of asscts, other than land and properties under construction over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Asset class - Years depreciated over

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leaschold buildings The lease term

Fixtures and fittings 3 to 16 years

Motor vehicles The shorf of the lease term or 4 years .

Intangible assets

Goodwill avising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in Lthe net fair value of the identifiable assets, |iabilities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost Jess
any accumulated impairment losses, Goodwill is held in the currency of the acquired entity and revalued to the
closing rate at cach reporting period date,

Goodswvill is not subject to amortisation but is tested for impairment on at least an annual basis. The impairment test i
compares the recoverable value of a cash generating unit (*CGU”), the value in use of that CGU and the carrying |
value of the intangible asset in accordance with IAS36, This assessment factors in the latest developments within :
each CGL, including amongs! other factors, current trading, capacily and siaffing constraints to assess an estimation )
of the future cashflows and the determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash i
flows, i

Wegalive goodwili arising on an acquisition Is recognised directly in the income statement. On disposal of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable ansount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss recognised in the income statement on disposal.

Separately acquired trademarks and licetices are shown at historical cost.

‘Frademarks, Hcences {iucluding software) and customer-related intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
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Aspris Holdco T.imited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets sa as to wiite off the cost, less any cstimated residual vatue, over thelr
expected usefitl economic life as follows:

Asget elass Years amortised over
Cusfomer contracts ) . 6to 17 years

The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the length of fixed-torm
cusiomer contracls

Valuation of investments

Investments in snbsidiaries held by the company are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment in the
carpany’s statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible 1o 1 known amount of cash and are subject to ar insignificant risk of changes in value.
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for scrvices performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normai operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets, If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methaod, less provision for itnpairment. A provision for the impaitment of trade
recelvables is established when thers is objsctive evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the recetvables.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current Habilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). 1 not, they ate presented as non-current liabilitics.

Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at awmortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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Aspris Holdeo Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
{continued)

Boryowings

All borrowings are initially vecorded at the fair value which is often the amount received, net of transaction costs.
Borrgwings ave subsequently carried ai ainortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of transaction
costs, and the amount due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the income statement over the period of the
relevant borrewing.

Interest cxpense s recognised on the basis of the effective interest method and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences belween the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of laxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities ave generally recognised for all taxable tenrporary differences. Deferred {ax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profils will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be ufilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial yecognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable femporary differences assceiated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible teneporary differences associaled with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against shich to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they arc expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

‘The carrying amount of deferred tax nsses is reviewed at the end of each repoiting period and reduced (o the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that arc expecled to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurament of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or setile lhe carrying amount of its
assets and lfabilities.
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Exceptional items

Items that are both material and non- reoccurring and whose significance is sullicient to warrant scparate disclosure
and identification within the eonsolidated financial information are referred to as exceptional items. ltems that may
give rise to classification as exceptional include but are note limited to, significant and material reorganisation and
restructuring programmes, re-financing and acquisition costs. Further details of exceptional items can be found in
note 10.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the Direclors® best estimate of the expenditure required lo settle the obligation at the
reparting date and are discounted 1o present value where the effect is matetial.

Leases
Definition

A lease is a contract, or a part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset or a physically distinct part of an
asset {“the underlying assel”) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Further, the contract must convey
the right to the Group to control the asset or a physically distinct portion thereof. A conract is deemed to convey the
right to contrel the underlying asset if, throughout the period of use, the Group has the right to:

*  Obtain substantially all the economic benefifs from the vse of the underlying asset, and;
s Direct the use of the underlying asset (c.g. direct how and for what purpose the asset is used)

Tnitial recognition and measurement

The Group initially recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for
the right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.

The leasc liability is measured al the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lsase term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless {as is typically the case) this is not
readily determinable, inn which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used.
The lease payments include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably
cerlain), expected amount of residual value guatantees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered
regsonably certain) and variable lease payments that depend on an index cr rate, In such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term.
Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured af the amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease
incentives received, the Group’s initial divect costs {e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restosation, removal and
dismantling costs.

Subseguent measurement

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the fease liability;

(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(c) Re-measuring the carying amount {o reflect any reassessmient or lease modifications or to reflect revised in
substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of ether specific events,
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Aspris Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Angust 2022
(confinued)

Leases (continued)

Interest v e feuse lubilily in each period during the [case term is the ameunt that preduces o constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are presented separvately as non-operating
costs, included in finance cost, in the income statement, unless the costs are included in the carying amount of
another asset applying other applicabie standards.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the [ease liability, are included in operating sxpenses in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers them arises.

The related right-of-nse asset is accounted for using the Cost model in IAS 16 and depreciated and charged in
accordance with the depreciation requirements of JAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment as disclosed in the
accounting policy for Property, plant and equipment. Adjustments are made to the camying value of the right of use
asset where the lease liabilily is re-measured in accordance with the above. Right of use assets are tested for
impaitment in accordance with 1AS 36 Impairment of assets as disclosed in the accounting pelicy in impairment.

Lease modifications

If e lease is modified, the modified contract is evaluated to determine whether it is or contains a jease. If a leasc
continues to exist, the lease modification will result in either a separate lease or a change in the accounting for the
existing lease.

The modification is accounted for as a separate {casc if both:

(a) The modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right 10 use one or more underlying assets; and
{b) The consideration for the lease increases by an amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustiments {o that stand-alone price to reflect the circumslances of the particular
contract.

If both of these conditions are met, the lease modification results in two scparate leases, the unmodified original
fease and a separate lease. The Group then accounts for these in line with the accounting policy for new leases.

If either of the conditions are not met, the modified lease is not accounted for as a separate lease and the
consideration is allocaled to the contracl and the lease liabifity is re-measured using the iease term of the modified
lease and the discount rate as determined at the effective date of the modification.

For a madification that fully or parlially decreases the scope of the lease (e.g, reduces the square footage of leased
space), IFRS 16 requires a fessee 1o decrease the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect partial or full
termination of the lease. Any difference between those adjusiments is recognised in profit or loss al the effective
date of the modification.

For all other lease modifications which are not accounted for as a separatc tease, IFRS 16 requires the lessee lo
recognise the amount of the re-imeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the corresponding right-of-use
asset without affecting profit or loss,

Short term and fow valie leases

The Group has made an accounting poiicy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and
lease liabilities for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less (i.e. short-term leases).

The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, not to recognise lease assets on leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value.

Lease payments on short term and lovy value feases are accounled for on a straight [inc bases over the term of the
lease or other systematic basis if considered more appropriale. Short term and low value lease payments are included
in operaling expenses in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 August 2022
(continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instroments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and
the tine value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribuiion plan is a peasion plan under which fixed contributions are paid into a separate entity and has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficiens assets W pay alt
crployees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior petiods.

Financial instruments
Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilitics compiise all assets and liahilities reflected in the slatement of financiai
position, excluding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax Niabilities.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial Habilitics in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Graup becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Financial Jiabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
representing the proceeds received net of premiums, discounts and transaction cosls that are directly attributable to
the financial liability.

Purchases or sales of a financial assets under a contract swhose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned are defined as a reguiar way
purchase or sale, All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities classified as fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") arc recognised on the trade date, i,e. the date on whick the Group commits to
purchase or sell the financial assets or financial liabilities. All regutar way purchases and sales of other financial
assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the setilement date, i.e. the daie on which the asset or liability is
received from or delivered o the counterparty. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at either amortised cost or
fair value.

Classification and measurement

Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following categories, which then determine the
subsequéent measurement methodology: -

Financial assets ave classified into one of the following categories:-
+ financial assets at amortised cost;
« financial assets at fair value through the profit or loss (FYTPL); or
Financial liabilitics arve classified into one of the following two categories: -
+ financial iliabilities at amortised cost; or
e financial liabilities at fair value through the profit or loss (FV'IPL).
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Financial instruments (continued)

The elussificalion and the Lasis [or izcasurement are subject to the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as detailed below:-

Financial assets af amortised cost

A financial assel is measured at amorlised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
EVTPL:

» the assets are held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

+  the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash {lows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount ciistanding.

If either of the above two criteria is not met, the financial assets are classified and measured at fair valuc through the
profit or loss (FVTPL).

1fa financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the Group may choose 1o designate the financial asset at
FVTPL. Such an election is irrevocable and applicable only if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition incensistency.

Financial assels at fair vaine through the profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets not otherwisc classified above are classified end measured as FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
All financial liabilities, other than those clessified as financial liabilities at FVTPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method,

Financlal lHabilities al fair value through the profit or loss
Fiancial liabilitics not measured at amortised cost are clessified and measured at FVTPL, This classification includes
derivative liabilities.

Dergcognition

Financial assets
The Group derccognises a financial asset when;

s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,

s it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred; or

s the Group neither ransfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retait control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised as a gain ot loss in the profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as FVTOC] is

not recognised in profit or foss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred financial asseis that
qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate usset ar liability.
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Financial instruments (continued)

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position, bul
retains either all or substantially all of risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, In such cases,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

When the Group derecognises transferred financial assets in their entirety, but has continuing involvement in them
then the entity should disclose for each type of continuing invalvement af the reparting date:

(a) The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities that are recognised in the entity’s statement of
financial position and represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the derecognised financial
asscts, and the line itemns in which those assets and liabilities are recognised.

(b) ‘Lhe fair valuc of the assets and liabilities that represent the entity’s continuing involvement in the
derecognised financial assets;

(o} The amount that best represents the entity’s maximum exposure to loss from its continuing
involvement in the derecognised financial assets, and how the maximum exposure to loss is
determined

(d) The undiscounted cash outflows that would or may be required 10 repurchase the derecopnised

financial assets or other amounts payable to the transferee for the transferred assets

Financial Habilities
The Group derecoghises a financlal liability when its contractual obligations arve discharged, cancelled, or expire.

[mpairment of financial assets
Measwrement of Expected Credit Losses

The Group recoghises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial instruments thal are not
measured at FVTPL, namely trade and other receivables,

Provisions for credit-impairment are recognised in the stefement of income and are veflected in accumulated
provision balances against each relevant financial instruments balance,

Evidence thal the financial asset is credif-impaired include the following;

*  Significant financial difficultics of the borrower or issuee;

s A breach of contract such as default or past due event;

*  The restructuring of the loan or advance by the Group on tertrs that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

s It is becoring probable that the borrewer will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

¢ There is other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers or issvers in the Group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the Group.

Tor trade receivables, the Group applics the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised fiom initial recognition of the recetvables,

Trade receivables are not subject to material or significant credit losses. Credit risk is not considered to be significant
given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly funded entilies.
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Financial justramenis (continued)

Financial instruments — Risk management

The Group is caposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which atise in the normal
course of business. The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are noled below, for further defail on these
financial risks please see note 27.

The principal financial instruments used by the Group, from which financial instrument risk arises, are as follows:

»  Trade receivables
¢ Cash deposits
=  Senior and revolving credit facilities containing a variable element linked to Sterling Overnight Index

Average
Capital Management

The Group’s objective when managing its capital is to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakcholders through the opfimisation of debt and equity please see note

27 for the Greup’s capital structure,
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key saurces of estirnation

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain financial assets, liabilitics, income and expenses.

The use of estimates and assumptions is principally limited to the defermination of provisions for lmpatrment and
the valuation of financial instruments as explained in more detail below:

Provisions for Impairment

In determining impairment of {inancia! assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows as weil as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurernent of BCL.

Bair value of financisl assets and liabilities

Where the fajr value of financial assets and linbilities cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined
using a vaticty of vatuation techniques that include the use of mathematical maodels. The input to these models is
derived from observable markets where available, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
determining assumptions used in the models. Changes in assumptions used in the models could affect the reported
fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

Going Concein

The Board reviews forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements based on a range of scenarios to ensure i has
sufficient cash to meet operational and financial needs, These forecasts are underpinned by detailed and embedded
forecasting processes and procedures tw provide granular visibility over beth the near term and fong term Hquidity
requirements of the Group, to inform the Directors decision making on all key financial matters. The Directors
consider both short term and long term forecasts for the busincss, rauging from rolling threc month daily liquidity
forecasting, annual budget and periodic intra year reforecasting processes, and {onger term 3 year long range plans
for the Group. Each of these projects the liquidity and covenant headroom for the Group.

"There are necessary estimales and judgements in the divectors’ assessment of going concern these are considered in
detail in the strategic yepott,

In assessing the potential impact of a range of risk factoi's on the business the Directors have considered the Tikely
tmpact on the Group of a range of risks specific fo the relevant business sector, as well as the compound impact of
risk factors in the broader macro environment that have evolved since the halance sheet dafe.

In particular, a severe but plausible downside scenario is considered by the Directors in order to assess the likely
impact of multiple different adverse factors impacting the Group simultaneously, giving rise to a material adverse
impact on the Group’s profitability and liquidity dueing the going concern period. Specifically, the severe but
plausible downside seenario assumes:

*  Reduction in occupancy levels from base forecasts of an aggregate of approximately 2% for the going
concern peviod.

+  Costinflation:

o Wage inflation — additional site-wide wage inflation of 1.0% beyond the Group’s planned wage
increases (which already reflect announced National Living Wage, Teacher's Pay Scale, and
other intemal increases)

o Non-Wage inflation - additional 1.0% cost inflation assumed beyond the Group’s base case.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of cstimation (continued)

* Fee inflation — over and above the cost impacls the scenario considers a mauterizl shortfall in the
proportion of fee increases that can be successfully achieved.

+  Inlerest rate increases — assumes a marked and sustained increase in interest rates, ant therefore the cash
flows required to service the Group’s debl, The scenario factors in Bank of England Base rates exceeding
5% by May 2023 and holding at this level for the remalining going concern period.

We do not consider that COVID-19 will have a material impact on the cashflows of the Group in the going concern
period.

‘The revenue and cost impact of such a scenario would have & najor negative impact on the Group’s profitability for
the going concern pericd. With operating profit being adversely impacted by approximately 30% in the period.
Furthermore, in adepting a prudent approach, the Directors have considered this scenario before relevan! mitigating
aclions that the business could implement to limit the adverse impact. Before the inclusion of such mitigations the
Group continues to forecast sufficient liquidity snd financial covenant headroom.

Business Combinations

The Group undertonk three busincss combinations during the period (note 17). In accordance with IFRS, the
purchase method of accounting has been used, The Dircctors determine and allocate the purchase price of acquired
businesses at the date of the business combination, The purchase method requires significant estimates and
judgments.

While Directors use their best estimates and assumptions as part of the purchase price allocation process to
accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition, estimates and assumptions ave
inherently uncertain and subject to refinement, Examples of critical estimates in valuing certain assets we have
acquired inciude;

» future expecled cashflows arising from assels and liabilities,
+ the fair value of inlangible and tangible assets, and
s discount rates,

Useful Economic lifc of intangible agsets

The Direclors have determined the useful economic life of certain intangible assets sequired as part of business
combination. The amortisation periods are based on expected customer churn rates and, where relevant, the lengih of

fixed-term customer contracis,

Right of use assets and ljabilities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates, recognised in accordance with
TFRS16 (note 13).

In calculating the assei/tiability attached 1o several of the lease agreements the Group has required use of an
Incremental Borrowing Rale (“IBR”). The IBR has considered the risk-free rate attributable to the currency, [ocation
and lease term of each propertly, adjusted to reflect the interest rates the Group would be able to achieve based upon
its existing financing arrangements.
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Crifical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation {continued)

The Directors have applied judgement to determine the lease term for contracts that include a renewa! or break
option. Extension options and break clauses are included in a number of the Group’s lease agreements to maximise
the flexibility in managing operational assets. In determining the lease term, the Directors have considered all facts,
circumsiances and the exercise dates of such clauses. Extension options and break clauses are oply reflected in the
lease term if there is reasonably certainty they will be exercised,

Impairment of goodwill and intangible fixed assets

The Directors must assess whether intangible assets have been impaired during the poriod. Factors taken into
consideration in reaching such a decision inchude the econemic viability and expected future financial performance
of the asset and wherc it is a component of a larger cash generaling unit, the viability, expected future performance
of thal unit using a discounted cashflow model as at the period end and the assessed fair value of cach cash
generating unit, The key estimates and assumptions that feature in the impairment test is the selection of pre-ax
discount rate relative to the specific risks of the cash-generating unit and the preparation of pre-tax cash flows using
director approved forceasts with growth rates that represent the Directors’ best estimates. (note 15)
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4. Revenue

The analysis of the Group’s revenue tor the period is as follows:

2622
£m
Turnover 178.6
Other revenue 0.6
_ 179.2
The analysis of the revenue by geographic region is as follows:
2022
£m
UK based divisions 176.5
Middle Easl based divisions 2.7
179.2
5. Staff costs
The aggregale payroll costs {including directors’ remuneration) were as foilows:
2022
£m
Wages gnd salaries 91.4
Social security costs 8.0
Pension costs, detined contribution scheme 4.5
103.9

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including the Direclors) during the period, analysed by
category was as follows:

2022

No.

Site and aperational 2,987
Administration and support 174
3,161
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6. Opyerating loss

Artived at after charging/(crediting)
2012
£m
Depreciation expense 8.7
Depreciation on right of usc assets 8.5
Amortisgtion expensc 5.0
Expense on short term leases 0.5

7. Auditors® remuneration

Audit fees of £0.5m were incurred by the Group during the period, all fees relate io the audit of the Group. There
were no fees incutred related to non-audit services.

8. Other gains and losses

‘The Group’s other gains or losses for the peried are as foliows:

2022
£m
_ Loss on disposal of property plant end equipment 0.3
9. Tinance income and costs
2022
£m
Finance income
Interest on bank deposits . Ga
0.1
Finance costs
{nterest on external borrowings 120
Interest on lease liabilities 10.8
_as
Net finance costs 22,7
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10, Exceptional items

2022

£m

Acquisition costs related to business combinations 5.8
Aspris forination and reorganisation costs [.3
Other {ransaction costs and charitable denations 0.7
7.8

Acquisilion costs on business combinations relate to the acquisition of Aspris Children's Services Limited (£2.6m)
from the Priory Group, the acquisition of SC Topco Limited (£3.1m), and the acquisition of Aspris (Arden) Limited

(£0.1my),

Aspris formation and reorganisation costs relate to other expenses artsing on the formation of the Aspris business as

standalone from the Priory Group and include marketing-related expenses associated with (he new Aspris brand.

Reorpanisation costs primarily relate 1o the revision 4o redundancy costs associated with exit of certain customer

conlracts and the implementation of revised management organisaticnal structures in the Group.

Other transaction costs relate to the Group's assessinent, and execution, of other corporate and property related

transactions.

The Groep elected 10 make a one-off contribution to UNICEF's Ukraine appeal during the period.

11, Taxation

Tax recognised in the income siastement

2022
Current tax £m
Cutrent tax on taxable income for the period 1.3
Deferred tax (note 26)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences . (1.6}
Tax eredited in the period 0.3

The reasons for the difference between the actual tax charge for the year and the standard rate of corporation tax
applied to the losses for the year are as follows:~

2022

£m

Loss for the year (27.4)
Tax using the company's tax rate 19% (5.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 5.3
Tax rate changes (0.4)
Total tax credited in tie period 0.3)
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Taxation {continued)

As a result of the Finance Bill 2021 the rates of income tax are expected to ingrease from [9% to 25% for the period
beginning April 2023.

Tax liabilities are recognised when, despitc the Group's belief that its tax return posilions are supporiable, the
Directors believe it is more fikely than not that a taxation authorily would accept its filing position.

The Directors believe that its aceruals for tax liabjlities are adequate for all gpen audit years based on ils assessment
of many factors including past expetience and interpretations of tax law.

No material uncertain tax positions exist as at 31 August 2022. This assessment relies on estimates and assumplions

and may involve a series of complex judgements about future events. To the extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the detcrmination is made.

12. Property piant and equipment

Group
Furniture, Properties
Laud and fittings and Motor under
buildings equipnment vehicles  construetion Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
Additions 2.3 6.5 0.1 3.2 2.1
Acquired through business
combinations 1224 29.6 0.6 33 155.9
Disposals (1.0} (0.5} - 0.2) (1.7
Transfers . 0.6 0.3 ‘ - 0.9 ) -
At 31 August 2022 124.3 359 0.7 ) 54 166.3
Depreciation
Charge for the period 1.9 6.7 0.1 - 8.7
Eliminated on dispasal 0.2) (0.3) - - (0.5)
At 31 August 2022 1,7 6.4 0.1 - 8.2
Carrying amount
At3] Aupust 2022 122.6 25.5 0.6 5.4 158.1

Under the terms of the Group’s external borrowings there is a fixed charge, in favour of the external lenders, over al]
property acquired for a consideration of over £0.75m. Please refer to note 22 for further information on the Group®s
external borrowings.
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13. Right of use assets and lnbililies

Group
Assets

Property  Motor vehicles Totul

£m £m Em

Cost or valuation
Acquired through business 150.8 2.4 153.2
combinations
Additions 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications B3 - 8.3
Disposals (0.1) {0.1) (0.2)
At 31 August 2022 162.0 2.8 164.8
Depreciation
Charge for the period 7.3 1.2 8.5
Eliminated on disposal - {0.H) (0.1}
At 31 August 2022 7.3 1.1 84
Carrying amount
Al 31 Aungust 2022 154.7 1.7 156.4
Liahilities

Property  Motor vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Acquired through business combinations 151.0 2.4 153.4
Additiong 3.0 0.5 3.5
Modifications 8.3 - g3
Disposals - - -
Interest 10.2 0.3 10.5
Lease paynietits (14.0) (L.3) (15.3)
Foreign Bxchange movements 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 August 2022 158.6 19 160.5

53




Aspris Holdco Timited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Augnst 2022
{continued)
Right of use asseis and liabilities (continuned)
Nature of leasing activities

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Some of these lcases provide for
payments to increasc each year by inflation or index rate movements. The Group has options to purchase or extend
the feases of certain properties. As the excreising of such oplions is not decmed to be regsonably certain, such
renewal options are not taken into account when determining the right of use assets and liabilities. Leases of vehicles
comprise only fixed payments over the lease term.

Lease liabilities are due as follows:

Maturity analysis £m
Year | 155
Year2 5.1
Year 3 143
Year4 13.9
Year 5 13.7
Onwards L2313
3038
Less: unearned interest (143.3)
160.5
Analysed as:
Non-Current 155.4
Crvent 5.4
160.5

Amounts vecognised in profit and loss

An amount of £0.9m has been recognised in profit and loss in respect of property leases that expired and were not
rengwved, and for rolling fease agreements. Cash payments in respect of these leases amourtied (o £0,9m.

AL 31 Avgust 2022, the Group had no commitments under these agicements in excess of a bwo-month notice period.
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14, Intangible assets
Group
Contractual
Goodwill customer
{(Note 15) relationships Total
£m £1m £m
Cost or valuaiion
Acquired through business combinations 69.3 98.8 168.1
At 31 August 2022 69.3 98.8 168.1
Amortisation
Amortisation charge - 5.0 5.0
Impairment (note 15) 19.7 - 19.7
At 31 August 2022 19.7 50 24.7
Carrying amount '
At 31 August 2022 49.6 93.3 143.4

All Intangible Fixed Assets {“IF As™) were identified on Purchase Price Allocation exercises (“PPA™) exercises
carried out on behalf of management by an independent expert, at two points:

I. Acquisilion of Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL” — subsequently rename Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Holdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of SC Topeo Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited, latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited

All IFAs have been amortised in line with useful economic lives determined by management at each relevant
acquisition date.

In accordance with accounting standards, the Group undertakes an annual review of Goodwill and where other IFAs
where there are indicators of inipaivment.
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15, Goodwill and impairment

Goodwil] represents the excess of the consideration over the Tair value of the net assets acquired on the purchase ol
the subsidiary compantes. In accordance with IFRS, this balance is not amortised and is subject to annual impaitment
reviews, Geodwill has heen zallocated to cach cash-gencrating unit (“CG1”) based on Purchase price Allocation
("PPA™) excreises:

1. Acquisition of Priory Education Services Limited ("PESL” ~ subsequently renamed Aspris Children’s
Services Limited) by Aspris Hotdeo Limited on 31 August 2021

2. Acquisition of 8C Topeco Limited by Aspris Children’s Services Limited on 28 January 2022

3. Acquisition of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limiied, latterly renamed Aspris {Arden) Limited

ACSL Sand-  Arden ‘Total

Group castie

Group
£m £m Em fm
Goodwill recognised during the period 210 471.7 1% 69.3
Impairiuent recognised during the peviod Rt N - {197
Goodwill 21,0 28.0 0.6 49.6

v accordance with accounting standards, the Growp undertakes an annual veview of Goodwill,

In order to determine if there has been any impairment of Goodwill, management prepared calculations of the
recoverabie amount for cach CGU, For both ACSL Group and the Sandcastle Care Group the recoverable value is
determined by the forecast present value of future cash flows of the CGU based on S-year projections ending in a
terminal growth rate assuurption, Forecasts are based on the assumptions set out befow:

Key Assmunptions ACSL Group Sandcastle Care
Discount Rate 11.0% 10.3%
Terminal Growth Rate 2.0% 1.0%
Operating Margin 10.3% 20.6%

ACSL Group

Since the date of acquisition, the ACSL Group has maintained performance in line with the budgeted targets set for
the business. Operational challenges, particularly regarding constraints on the availability of staff have been
effectively manaped, without a material adverse impact on ACSL’s profitability for the petiod.

Yorecast for FY23 is based on budget prepared by management and approved by the Doard, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022. Operating profit is forecast to increase at 2% CAGR befween Y24 and
FY27. Replacement capex to maintain the estate has also been assumed, on par with Y23 budgeled levels.

Regarding the Group’s acquisition of 100% of the share capital of ACSL Group on 31 August 2021 the Group assessed
the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired 1o be £41.2m, compared to the total consideration of £62.2m, giving
rise to £21.0m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group. As at 31 August 2022 Management assessed the
recoverable amount for ACSL Group to be £241.1m, £19.5m greater than the catrying value, and thus no impairment
to the Goodwill arising on acquisilion is recognised in the period.
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Goodwill and impairment (continued)
Sandeastle Care Groun

Since the date of acquisition, the Sandcastle Care business has maintained a high quality rating performance of over
90% post-acquisition, but the business has been impacted by operational challenges that have reduced both its
available capacity and utilisation. Whilst aspects of these chalienges are not thought 1o be permancnt, they have
impacted the overall assessment of the present value of future cashflows from the business. These challenges include
staffing constraints that have led to reduced total occupancy and an adverse impact on operating margins compared to
the budgeted Largets for the business.

Forecast for FY23 is based on the budget prepared by managemen! and approved by the Board, with appropriate
adjustments for trading at 31 August 2022, Operating prefit is forecast to increase at 1% CAGR between FY24 and
FY27. Replacement capex o maintain the eslate has also been assumed, on par with FY23 budgeted levels,

Regarding the Group's acquisition of 100% of the share capital of SC TopCo Limited on 28 January 2022 the Group
assessed the fair value of identifiable net assets sequited to be £14.0m, compared to the total consideration of £61.7m,
giving rise to £47.7m intangible goodwill being recognised by the Group,

Management assessed the recoverable amount for Sandcastle Care Group to be £77.6m, £19.7m lower than the
carrying value of the CGU on a comparable basis at balance sheet date, and as such have impaired the goodwill
associated with the CGU by ihe shortfall in carrying value versus the recoverable amount.

Impairment sensitivities for ACSL Group and Sandcastle Cave Group

If any one of the following assumptions were amended by | percentage point, the impact on the impairment value
would be as follows:

Sensitivities

Aspris

Sandeastle Care

Discount Rate {1% increase)

Reduction to carrying value
from £241.1m to £221.2m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m fo £71.6m

Terminal Growth Rate (1% reduction)

Reduction to canying value
from £241.1m 1o £220.7m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £71.5m

Operating Margin {1% reduction beyond FY27)

Reduction to carrying value
from £241.Im {0 £223.0m

Reduction to carrying value
from £77.6m to £74.8m

Aspris (Arden) Limited

The assets held by Aspris (Arden) Limited consist of land and buildings, these were at fair value on zeguisition,
there are no subseguent indicators of impairment to the assets of Aspris (Arden) Limited, Since the acquisition of
Arden the business has been performing in line with expectations, and thus no impairment to the Goodwill arising

on acquisition is required in the period.
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16. Investinents - Group Subsidiaries

(continued)

Details of the group subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022 arc as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Aspris Midco Limited
Aspris Bidco Limited

Agspris Children’s Services Limited

Coxlease Schooel Limited

Castlecars Group Limited

Progress Care and Education Limited

Speciality Care Limited
Strathmore College [,imited
Aspris (Thetford I) Limited

Aspris New Edueation Services Limited

Castlecare Holdings limited
Quantum Carce UK Limited

Speciality Care (Rest Homes) Linited
Speciality Care (Medicare) Limited
Specialised Courses Offering Purposeful

Education Limited

Aspris (Thetford 2} Limited
Dunhall Property Limited
Castle Homes Care Limited
Castiecare Cymru Limited
Castle Homes Limtited
Rothcare Estates Limited

Castlecare Education Limited

Principal activity

Holding company
Holding company
Specialist cducation services
Non trading

Non trading
Children’s homes
Holding company
Care delivery

Non trading
Education

Non trading
Children’s cave homes
Care delivery

Holding company
Care delivery

Non trading

Non trading
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Children’s care homes
Property company

Specialist education services

38

Repistered office

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Uinited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Proporvtien of
ownership
interest and
voting rights
100%

100%

106%

100%

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

H00%
106%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Inyestments {continued)

(continued)

Thetford Trustee LLP Nan trading United Kingdom 100%
Aspris {Troup House) Limited * Educalion United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scotland Holdings Limited* Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Aspire Scatland Eimited*® Children’s care and education Uniled Kingdom 100%
Galany 1 Limited* Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
Galaxy UK Leisure Limited*® Children’s care and education United Kingdom 100%
5C Topee Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
5C Bidco Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 106%
Natabra Properties Limited** Property compary United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Holdings Limited** Holding company United Kingdom 100%
Sandcastle Care Limited®* Children’s carc homes United Kingdom 100%
Portixol UK Limited** Property company United Kingdom 100%
Aspris (Arden) Limited Property company United Kingdom 100%
Priory Heslthcare LLC*** Healthcare UAE 0%

Unless stated otherwise the registered address of each subsidiary is; The Forge, Church Street West, Woking,
Surrey, England, GUZ1 6HT

*Company registered address is: 38-40 Maonsion house Road, Glasgow, G41 3IDW

* *Comnpany registered address is! 49 Whitegate Drive, Blackpool, Lancashire, England, FY3 9DG

**4 Aspris Group contrals Priory Healthcare LLC through a combination of contractual agreemenis and the ability to direct Ihe financial and
operational management of the entity

Aspris Holdco Limited has given statuiory guarantees against al] the outstanding liabilities of all wholly owned
subsidiaries as at 31 August 2022, This thereby allowed dormant subsidiaries to be exempt from the requirement to
prepare and file annual accounts under section 394A or the Companies Act, and non-dormant subsidiaries to be
exempt from the annual audit requirement under Section 479A of the Companies Act, for the period ended 31
Aupust 2022,

The Group has contrel of a 60% interest in Saudi Healthcare LLC (“SHe”), an entity registered in KSA, which
operates @ Wellbeing Centre in Riyadh. The operation, although important to management’s future plans and
strgtegy in the region, is not seen as matertal in the context of these Financial Statements.

During the period the Group loaned £1.1m to SHe, in addition to the £0.1m interest in share capital and £06.3m.
acquired on business combination. SHc did not trade during the period and incurred losses of £0.9m, the Group’s
share of these losses £0.5m have been recognised In operating costs.

Investments - Company

Group

2022

Iuvestments made duving period - Cost im
Aspris Mideo Limited 119.1
At 31 August 2022 119.1
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17. Business combinations
Acquisition of subsidiary — Aspris Children’s Services Limited and subsidiaries

On 31 August 2021, the Group acquited 100% of the issued share capital of Prioiy Education Services Limited
(katterly named Aspris Children’s Services Limited), obfaining control. The principal activity of Aspris Children’s
Services Limited (®ACSL™} is provision of specialist schools, colleges, children’s homes and fostering. ACSL was
acquired by Aspris Bidco Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Aspris Holdco Limited. This transaction was
undertaken o purchase the children’s services and Middle East apetations of the Priory Group, of which ACSL and
its subsidiaries were previously members of.

The 100% shareholding i ACSL was obfained for cash consideration of £62.2m.

As part of the acquisition, loaus totalling £90,lm between ACSL and ity subsidiaries, and Priary Group wete setiled.
"The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and lisbilities assumed are as set out in the

table befow:
Book Fair Value

£m Valee adjusiments Fair value
Assets and liabilitles acquired

Property, plant and equipment 134.2 5.0 139.2
Right of use assets 1532 (0.2 153.0
Intangible assels 27,2 152 42.4
Trade and other receivables 3.7 0.1 13.8
Cash and cash equivalent i.9 - 19
Lease liabilities (153.2) - (153.2)
Trade and other payables {134.0) - {1340y
Provisions (0.8) - 0.8}
Deferred tax iiabilities (3.8) (17.3) 21.1)
Total identiffable assets 384 2.8 412
Goodwill - . 210
‘Total consideration ' 62.2
Satisfied by:

Cash 62.2
Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 62.2
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (1.9)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 603
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Business combinations (continued)

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with # fuir value of £12.2m and a gross centractual value
of £12.6m. The best estimate at acquisition dale of the contractual cash flows not (o be collected are £0.4m,

The goodwill of £21m arising from the acquisilion consists of the presence of certain intangible assels, which do not
qualify for separate recognition, such as;

»  Asgsembled workforce of ACSL, including both the UK and Middle East workforce

e Aspris® ability 1o extend the existing relationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the useful
economic life anticipated at initial acquisition

¢ Development of new relationships in the Middle East

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income 1ax purposes.
Acquisition related costs of £2,5m arose as a tesult of the transaction.
Acquisition of subsidiary - SC Topeoe Limited and subsidiaries

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (*Sandcastle Care’),
obtaining centrol. The prineipal activity of Sandcastle Care js the provision of therapeutic care homes for children.
Sandcastle Care was acquired to achicve the creation of a consolidated business in the Watertand group that is
focused on providing children's service. The transaction provides Aspris with greater coverage in the Northwest of
England, where Sandcastle Cares’ properties ave primarily located.
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Business combinations (continued)

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the
table below:

£m Book Fair value Fair
Value adjustments value
Assets and liabilities acquired
Property, plant and equipment 244 {13.2) 1.2
Right of usc assels 0.2 - 0.2
[ntangible asscts 12.0 44.4 56.4
‘I'rade and other receivables 3.8 - 3.8
Cash and cash equivalent 1.6 - 3.0
Lease liabilities {0.2) - {0.2)
Trade and other payabies {2.5) - (2.5)
Income tax liability (1.1} - (.13
Loans and borrowings (41.3) - (41.3)
Deferred tax liabilities (0.2) (15.9) (16.1}
Total identifiable asscts (3 5.3 140
Gooadwill - - 4;—
Total consideration T T 61.7
Satisfied by:
Cash 61.7
Cash flow analysis:
Cash consideration 61.7
I.ess: cash and cash equivaient balances acquired {3.6)
MNet cash outflow arising on acguisition 58.1

The fair value of the financial assets includes receivables with a fair value of £3.4m and a gross contractual vatue of
£3.4m.

The goodwill of £47.7m arising from the acquisition consists of the presence of certain intangible assets, which do
not qualify for separate recognition, such as;
*  Assembled workforce of Sandeastle Care.
¢ Sandessile Care’s ability to extend the existing refationships acquired with Local Authorities beyond the
useful economic life anticipated at initial acquisition,

Mone of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £3.1m arose as a result of the transaction.
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Acqguisition of subsidinry  Asprie (Arden) Limited

QOn 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Hollybtue Healtheare {Arden) Limited,
latterly renamed Aspris (Arden) Limited on obtaining control, its principal activity is a property lessor. The
purchase of Hollyblue Healthcare (Arden) Limited enabled the acquisition of the freehold inlerests in properties
previously leased to the Group. This included propertics that had previously formed part of the Priory Group’s
tesidential adult cave division. Subsequent to the purchase of Hollyblue (Arden) Limited such properties weve
disposed of by the Aspris Group to the Priory Group at fair value.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as sel oul in the
table helow:

#m Book Value il e e
Assets and liabilities acquired

Property, plant and equipment 5.5 - 5.5
Trade and other payables {0.1} - (0.1)
Income iax liabilily (0.1} - (0.1}
Deferred tax liabilities - 0.6 (0.6)
Total identifiable assets 53 0.6) 4.7
Goodwill - - 0.6
Total consideration 53
Satisfied by:

Cash 53
Cash flow analysis:

Cash consideration 53
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 5.3

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for corporation tax purposes.

Acquisition related costs of £0.1m arose as a resull of the {ransaction.
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. Business combinations (continued)

Impact of the acquirees on amounts reported in the statement of comprehensive income

The amounis of revenue and profit or loss of the acquirees since acquisition date included in the consolidated

statement of income for the reporting period is as follows:

Aspris  Sundcastle  Arden

£m £m £m

Revenue 162.7 16.5 0.0

Operating cost (140.9) (15.5) 0.3

Operating profit before Impalrment and other losses and exceptional 21.8 1.0 03
costs

[mpairment and other logses and exceptional costs (8.0) {15.8) 0.0

Operating profit 13.8 (18.8) 0.3

The revenue and profit or logs of the combined entity for the current reporting period as through the acquisition date
for all business combinations that ccourred during the year had been at the beginning of the 12 month trading period

starting 1 September 2021, is as follows:

£m
Revenue 191.0
Operating cost eYity))
Operating profit before impairment and other losses and exceptional 19.3
COosls
Impairment and other losses and exceptional costs (28.3)
Operating profit (9.0)
18. Trade and ether receivables
Group Company
31 Augast 31 August
2022 2022
Current £m £m
Trade reccivables 19.7 -
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 0.1) —
Net trade receivabies 19.6 -
Accrued income 0.4 -
Prepayments 17 -
Loans receivable from joint ventture (note 28) 1.0 -
Other receivables 1.8 0.2
24.5 0.2

All cwrent veceivables are due within 1 year of balance sheet date. None of these are subject to material or significant
credit Iosses, Credit risk is not considered to be significant given that over 90% of revenue is derived from publicly

funded entities.

Amounts receivable from joint venlure are not subject to interest and are repayable on demand.
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19. Cash and cash equivalents
Group  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Cash at bank 18.1 0.7

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and at bank, Cash at bank is held with banks or financial
institution counterparties which are investment grade rated, Management do not expect any losses from non-
performance of counterparties.

20, Deferred income

Group
2022
£m

Acquired through business combination 28.9
Deferred during the year 288

Recognised during the year {28.9)
28.8

Deferred income is in respect of services involced in advance of delivery snd is released as services are delivered,

21. Issued capital and reserves

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares

2022 2022

Na. £000

A Ovdinary shares of £1 each 82,851,341 82,851
B Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,782,603 1,783
C Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,232,266 12
85,866,210 84,646
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Issued capital and reserves {continued)
New shares aliotted
Class No. Consideration
£000
A Ordinary shares of £1 each' 82,851,341 116,861 |
B Ordinary shares of £1 cach? £,782,603 2,223
C Ordinary shares of £1 each? 1,232,266 36
85,806,210 119,120

! A Ordinary shares of £1 cach have full voting and payments of dividend rights, right to distibutions nlongside B Ordinary sharehodders in
prionity 1o C Ordinary shareholder, subject to a threshold. Rights to distributions once the theeshold has been surpassed alongside the B Ordinary
shareholders and C Ordinary sharcholders.

2 B Ordinary shares of £1 eact: have full voting and payments of dividend tights, right to distibulions alongside A Qrdinary sharcholders in
priozity to C Ocdinary shareholder, subject 1o 3 threshold. Rights to dislributions once the threshold has been surpassed alongside the A Ordinary
sharcholders and C Ordinmy shareholders.

1C Ordinary shares of £1 each have no voling rights. C Ordinary shares have rights (o dividends and distribulions once the threshold has been }
surpassed alongside the A and B Ordinary sharebolders. |

22. Loans and borrowings

Group

2022

Non-curren( loans and borrowings £in
Exlernal loans 165.0
Capitalised debt feus (5.4)
External borrowings 159.6

The Group entered into a senior term and revolving facility agreement on 27 August 2021 1o facilitate the
acquisition of Sandcastle Cave and future acquisitions. As at the end of the period the drawn senior facilities of
£165.0m are secured over the Group’s assets and carry interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate,
The loans are repayable 7 years from the date of completion of the acquisition of ACSL.

External borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction costs that are directly attributable to the credit
facilities. At the balance sheet date this was £5.4m.

The Group®s Loan facilities are subject to a single financial covenant test which is assessed quarterly. This covenant
assesses the total gross Leverage of the Group as a ratio to proforma LTM EBITDA of the consolidated group at
each quarterly test date. At the balance sheet date the covenant threshold was 7.4x, as at 31 August 2022 the ratio
level was materizlly below this threshold at a level of 4.9x. This equates to £11.6m ¢f headroom expressed in terms
of proforma LTM EBITDA.

As at 31 August 2022 the Group had letters of credit in place amounting to £2.3m. This amount i3 ringfenced within
the Group’s total revolving credit facility of £22m for this purpose, with no other amounts drawn under this facility
as at the balance sheel date. These letters issued by the Group’s principal bankers to the Group’s insurers, an
employee pension scheme, and to support credit granted under supplier coniracts.
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23, Provisions
Legal
provision
2022
£m
Acquired through business combination 0.8
Charged in income statement 04
Used during year 0.2)
1.0
24, Trade and other payables
Growp  Company
2022 2022
£m £m
Trade payables N -
Accrued expenses 1.7 -
Amounts dye to related parties - 4.9
Social security and other taxes 2.3 -
Other payables 44 -
21,5 0.9

Other payables consist of credit balances, funds held on behalf of ADEK for the operation and invesiment of the
school operated by the Group and savings held on behalf of young persons.

25, Pension

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The pension cost charge for the period represeits
contributions payable by the Group to the scheme and anourted to £4.5m

16. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temparary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 19%. The
increase in corporation tax to 25% is expecled 1o be effective from April 2023, This new rate will be applied to
deferred tax balances which are expected to reverse as at 1 September 2022,

Deferred tax assels have been recognised in respect of all temporary dilferences giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the Direclors believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

The moverments in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to the offsctting of balances within the same jurisdiction
as permitted by 1AS 12) during the period are shown below.
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Deferred tax {continued)

Details of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognised in the profit or loss and amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are as follows:

Recognised in Recogrised in Recognised in Total
business fncome other 31 August
cambinations comprehensive 2022

(Note 17) income
Intangible asset differences 238 (1.3) - 22.5
Tengible asset differences 14.0 (4 I - 137
L 37.8 {1.6) - 36.2

Dreferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of capital tax losscs carried forward in the UK totalling £2.4m
as there is insufficient evidence &s to their recoverability.

27, Financial instraments

Financial assets and Yabilities
Finaneial assets and finanelal liabilities comprise all assets and liabilities reflected in the statement of financial

position, exciuding property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred tax assets, prepayments and deferred
tax liabilities.

Group Company
2022 2022
Tinancial assets £m £m
Investments in subsidiaries - 119.1
Trade and other receivables 228 02
Cash and cash equivalent 18,1 07
40.9 120.0
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payablcs 215 0.9
Incorme tax Hability 0.9 -
Deferred income 28.8 -
Lease liabilitics 160.5 -
Losang and borrowings 159.6 -
Provisions 1.0 -
372.3 0.9

There is no difference between the carrying value of financiaf instruments and their fair value. The Group has no
financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

The Group does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.
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TFinancial instruments (confinmued)

Financtal rish wauageaent

The Group is exposed to financial risks in the form of credit, interest and liquidity risks which arise in the normal
course of business, The primary financial risks that the Group is exposed to are delailed below:

Credit visic - Cash deposits and Trade veceivables
Financial instruments which potentially expose the Group to credit visk consist primarily of cash and trade receivables.

Cash is only deposited with major financial institwtions thai satisfy cerlain credit criteria, Credit risk in relation to
lrade receivables is not considered to be significant given that the vast majority of revenue is derived from publicly
funded education and care services. The Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the
balance sheet is net of allowances of £0.1m for doubtful receivables. The Group mcasures those allowances al an
amouni equal to the lifetime expected credit lesses using both quantitative and quatitative information and analysis
based on the Group’s histerical experience and forward-looking information.

Allowances against doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference to past experience of the counterparty. The majority of the Group’s allowance for doubtful
debis relales to specific trade receivables that ave not considered to be recoverable, and management only considers it
appropriate to create a collective provision based on the age of the trade receivable in respect of certain types of trade
receivables.

The aging of trade receivables at 31 August is as follows:

£m

Current 4.9
30-60 days 14.0
60-150 days 0.5
150 days + 0.3
19,7

The Direclors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to their fair
value.

Trade receivables at least 60 days past due for which no {oss allowance has been made at 31 December i3 £0.7m.

Further to the credil risks described on cash and trade receivables the Group does not have any sigaificant credit risk
exposure 10 any single counterparty or any group of counterpacties having similar characteristics, The Group defines
counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related eatities.

There is no concern over the credit quality of amounts past due but for which no loss allowances has been recognised
since the risk is spread over a number of unrelated counterpariies which include central and local Government. The
maximum exposure o credil risk at the reperting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above and cash held by the Group.
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Financial risk management {continued)

Interest rate visk — Serior and Revolving credit facifities containing a variable element linked to Sterfing Overnight
Index Average

The Group is financed by a combination of Senior and Revolving external credit facilities. The facilities are
denominated in pounds and are borrowed with interest at a variable margin over the applicable SONIA rate. Senior
loans are repayable on 31 August 2028, and Revolving facilities ave repayable on 31 August 2026.

[n addition to assessnrents required by macro-economic events, the Group monitors its near term inlerest rate exposure
on a monthly basis, and longer term exposure on 2 bi-annual basis, This includes the review of the options available
to it for the hedging of Interest rate risk, but currently does not have a hedged component to the intercst burden on its
external debt, In light of prevalling market conditions, and the high cost of hedging instruments, the Directors believe
the Growp has sufficient capacity to addiess the risk of interest sate rises.

Based on modelling performed, a 100 basis point shift in SONIA rates would have a £1.65m increase ot dectease oh
interest payments due on the Group’s external debt. A 350 basis point shift (being the maximum likely change in
interest rates over the year from the period end) would have an impaet of £5.8m on interest payments due on the
Group’s external debt,

Liquidity visk

The Group prepares both annual and short-term cash flow forecasts reflecting known commitments and anticipated
projects. Borrowing facilities are utilised as necessary to finance requirements, The Group has sufficient available
bank facilities and cash flows from profits to fund current commitments.

The following table shows the contractual cash flow maturities for financial tiabilities:

Tatal  O-Lyears 2-Syears 5+ years

Trade and other payables 216 216
Borrowings 165.0 165.0
Lease liabifities i} 303.8 15.5 570 2313

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s operations are in the UK and as such forsign currency risk is not deemed significant.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group's objective when managing its capital is 10 enswre that entities in the Group will be able to continuc as a
going concern whilst maximising returns for stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The Group's
capital structure is as follows:

2022
£
Cash 18.1
Borrowings! (165.0)
Lease linbilities (160.5)
Equity 92.0
1. Excluding acerued interest and capitalised debt fees
Analysis of net debt
Business Cash Other
Combinations flow Interest movement?
£m £m1 £m £m £fm
Cash 5.5 12.6 - - 18.1
Boirowings’ (41.3) {123.7) - - (165.0)
Net Debt (excluding (35.8) (111.1) - - (146.9)
Lease liabilities)
Lease labilities (153.4) 15.3 (10.5) (11.9) {160.5)
Net Debt (193.0) (92.0) (10.5) {11.9) 307.4)

t Excluding acciued interest and capilalised debt fees of £5.4m
2. Relates to non-cash movements in lease liabilities - see note 13 for delails

28. Related parties

Ultimate parent and controlliug party

The Company’s immediate parent is Standbyco 35 B.V

The ultimate parent is Waterland Private Equity Investments B.V

The ultimate controlling party is Waterland Private Equity [nvestimenis B.YV

Aspris Holdeo Limited is the smallest and larpest company for which consolidated financial statements are prepared
for public use.
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Related parties (coutinued)

Balanecs and transactions betwveen the Company and its subsidiarics, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consolidation and ave not disclosed in this note,

The Group is owed £1.4m fiom Saudi Healthcare LLC, a related party as a joint venture investment which is cquity
accounted for in these statements, there is no interest charge, and this balance is repayable on demand. Held against
this receivable is a provision of £0.4m for the Group’s shate of the initial losses incurred over the investment amount
made in Saudi Healthcare LLC. The net of the amounts owed of £1,0m is detailed in note 18.

The Group paid a managemeni charge of £30,000 ta WPEF VIII Holding Coéperaticf W.A, a related party through
comman control,

Prior to the acquisition of Aspris Group {nate 17) Priory Education Services Limited (“PESL™) was 2 part of the Priory
Group. At the time of the transaction Priory Group was a related party. Whilst the Group’s operations were largely
autonomous from thosc of the wider Priory Group, Aspris was the recipient of central support services provided to it
by the Priory Group. These services continued under a transitional services arrangement agreed at the time of the
Group’s acquisition of PESL. This transitional agreement provided for back office suppott, including use of systems
and software, human resources support, estates and aspects of financial reporting assistance, This transitional stage
inchuded the implementation of Aspris® own standalone systems and support infrastiucture, the process of which was
completed by 30th November 2022, with all services received wnder this transitional arangement ceased to be
provided from that date.

On 28 January 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the fssued share capital of SC Topeo Limited (note 17), obtaining
control. SCl'opeo Limited was a related party by the nature of cormmen ownership. One of the principal purposes of
the acquisition was to achieve the creation of a consolidated business in the Waterland group that is focused on
providing children's service.

During the period an amount of £0.4m was advanced lo directors at an interest rate cqual to the HMRC official rate
of interest, on a term concutrent with the period with which the Directors remaln sharcholders in the Group. Interest
is paid by the Directars annually and early repayment of any portion of the outstanding balance Is permitted at any
time, During the period repayments of £0.2m were made, with the remaining £0.2m cutstanding at the period end
being included in ather recaivables (note 18)
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Key management personnel

Key management personne! are those persons having suthority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

2022
£000
Directors’ emoiuments 1,926
Directors” post-employment benefits 8

'Fotal emeluments for the highest paid director were £1,153,000, this included a one-ofl non-recurring reward of
£305,000 relating to the exceptionally high level of corporate transactions and reorganisation activity successfully
comipleted during the period. The value of the Company”s contributions paid to a defined contribution pension
scheme in respect of the highest paid director amounied to £4,000.

The number of Directors to whom retivement benefits are acerued under inoney purchase pension schemes is 2,

29, Ewvents after reporfing date
Acquisition of BHIS Heldings Limited

Following the close of the reporting period, and consistent wilh the Group strategy of expanding its specialist
education division, the Group completed the acquisition of a specialist education provider in the UK, BIIIS
Holdings Limited, on | March 2023,

The acquired business, and its wholly owned subsidiaries, provide specialist education for up to approximately 100
primary and secondary school aged young people in the East of England.

To support this acquisition, and the Group’s broader growth objectives, the Group entered inte an extension of its
available external debl facilities with its existing lenders. This new growth facility was agreed and effective from §
February 2023, These facilities provide an additional £25m of committed available debt capacity to support the
growth projects of the Group.

In addition, as part of the above acquisition the Group issued additional equity capital to its shareholders in March
2023, with the above acquisition being funded through a combination of a partial drawdown of the new growth debt
facility and this nesw equity capital raisc.
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